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Independent Auditors’ Report

To,
The Members of
Organic Waste (India) Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Organic Waste (India) Private
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its Loss and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements Section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

»
Key Audit Matters
Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our professional judgment were of most significance
in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key Audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the

Company as it is an unlisted Company.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexure to Board’s Report but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but

124459W | v/ |
S\ MUMBAL / -




A GADA & BID

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Regd. off. : A/45, Nutan Jai Bharat, S.G. Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025.
Branch Office : A-303, Takshashila Commercial Centre, R.H.B. Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400080.
Phone : 022-35985884 ; Email : solutions@gadabid.com ; Web : www.gadabid.com

material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31,2024 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting;

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197 (16)
of the Act:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid any
remuneration to its directors.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Company or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under Sub-Clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the softwares. Further during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of the audit trial feature being tempered with.
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 124459W
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Partner % _/.;,,
Membership No.: 112711 .
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2024
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ Section
of our report to the members of Organic Waste India Private Limited of even date)

i

(a)

The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(i)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b)

The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(i)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c)

There is no immovable property held by the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)

The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a)

The Company does not have any inventories. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on Clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

1l

(a)

In respect of investment made, guarantee given. security provided and loans or
advances in the nature of loans granted during the year, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties, we indicate as
under:

(A) The aggregate amount and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date of loans
or advances in the nature of loans, guarantee or security granted to subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates is Rs NIL (PY Rs. NIL) & Rs. NIL (PY Rs. NIL)
respectively.

(B) The aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of loan granted during
the yearis Rs NIL (PY Rs. NIL) and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date
of loans or advances in the nature of loans, guarantee or security granted to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is Rs. 443.62 in
Lakhs (PY Rs. 444.69 in Lakhs) respectively.

(b)

The Company has not made any investments, given any guarantee nor provided any
security and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s_
interest. - ,/\.x &
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(c) | As in respect of these loan and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of
repayment of principle and payment of interest has not been stipulated we are
unable to express any opinion as to whether the repayment of principle and interest
is regular.

(d) | As these loan and advances in the nature of loans are repayable on demand there
arise no question of it becoming overdue.

(e) | As these loans or advances in the nature of loans are repayable on demand there
arise no question of it falling due or renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to
settle the overdue of existing loan given to same parties.

(f) | During the year, the Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature
of loan to any parties including promoters and related parties and balance
outstanding at the balance sheet date of loans or advances in the nature of loans Rs.
443.62 In Lakhs (PY Rs. 444.69 in Lakhs) respectively is in the nature of repayable
on demand and without any specific terms about repayment and this include Rs.
443.62 In Lakhs (PY Rs. 444.69 in Lakhs) granted to promoters and related parties
as defined U/s 2(76) of the Companies Act 2013.

iv. In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loan given by the company in earlier
years, the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies have been complied with and
the Company being established with the object of and engaged in the business of
providing Infrastructural Facilities as prescribed in Section 186(11) r. w. Schedule VI,
does not require to comply the provision of Section 186 in respect of Loan given by
the Company. Apart from loans, the company has not made any investment, given
any guarantee nor provided any security.

v The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

vi. The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the
Company.

vil. (a) | The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to
it. The provisions relating to duty of excise, sales tax, service tax & value added tax
are not applicable to the company. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of statutory dues outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable, except TDS Rs. 3.57 Lakhs and
Provident Fund Rs. 1.11 Lakhs.

(b) | There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, customs duty, cess, and other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute. The provisions relating to duty of excise,
sales tax, service tax & value added tax are not applicable to the Company.
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viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
Clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iX. (a) | The Company does not have any loans or borrowings. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) | The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) | The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) | The Company did not raise any funds on short term basis during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) | The Company does not have its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(f) | The Company does not have its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

X (a) | The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of an initial public
offer / further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) | The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Xi. (a) | No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) | During the year, no report under Sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) | As perinformation and explanation given to us by the management, Vigil mechanism
/ whistle blower policy is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Xil. (a) | The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) | The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not

-

applicable to the Company.
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(c) | The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the Financial Statements, as required by the applicable Accounting
Standards. The provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, the requirements to report under Clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it
relates to Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

Xiv. The provision of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on Clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XVi. (a) | The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) | The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(c) | The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) | There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

XVil. The Company has incurred cash losses of INR 0.71 Lakhs in the current year and has
also incurred cash losses of INR 9.94 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial
year.

xviil. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,

the requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.




GADA & BID

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Regd. off. : A/45, Nutan Jai Bharat, S.G. Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025.
Branch Office : A-303, Takshashila Commercial Centre, R.H.B. Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400080.
Phone : 022-35985884 ; Email : solutions@gadabid.com ; Web : www.gadabid.com

XiX. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 19 to the Financial Statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX. (a) | The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate
Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) | The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate
Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 124459W
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Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
Section of our report to the Members of Organic Waste (India) Private Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub -
Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Organic Waste (India)
Private Limited (the “Company”) as at March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the guidance note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial
reporting.
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A GADA & BID

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Regd. off. : A/45, Nutan Jai Bharat, S.G. Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025.
Branch Office : A-303, Takshashila Commercial Centre, R.H.B. Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400080.
Phone : 022-35985884 ; Email : solutions@gadabid.com ; Web : www.gadabid.com

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
Statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 124459W

Rushabh A. Gada
Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024
UDIN: 24112711BKAINU1444



Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
= CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 4 17.84 17.84
Reserves and surplus 5 422.33 423.04
440.17 440.88
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 6 -
Other Long-term liabilities 7 "
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 6 - 0.29
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises -
Other current liabilities 7 15.38 15.30
15.38 15.59
Total 455.54 456.46
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets
-Property, Plant & Equipment = -
-Intangible assets - -
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8 - -
Long-term loans and advances 9 445.01 446.08
Other non current assets 10 4.23 4.23
449.24 450.31
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 0.60 0.45
Short-term loans and advances 9 5.71 5.71
Other current assets 10 - -
: 6.31 6.16
Total 455.54 456.46
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

As per our report of even date.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 12445

Rus
Partner :
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Organic Waste (India) Private Itj it

b=

Sarang Bhand
Director
DIN : 01633419

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

Ydshgs Bhand
Director
DIN: 07118419

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024




" Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063 ;
- Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs except earning per share)

Particulars

Notes

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

For the Year Ended

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (i)

Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses (ii).

Profit/(Loss) exceptional and extraordinary item and tax (iii = i-ii)
Exceptional items (iv)

Profit/(Loss) Extraordinary item and tax (v=iii-iv)

Extraordinary Items (vi)

Profit/(Loss) before tax (vii= v-vi)

Tax Expenses (viii)

Current tax

Deferred tax 3

Short/(Excess) provision of tax of earlier years

Total tax expenses
Profit/(Loss) for the year (ix= vii-viii)

Earnings per equity share (in INR) [nominal value of INR 10 per share

(March 31, 2023 - INR 10 per share)]
Basic
Diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies

12

13

14

031

0.31

0.71

9.94

0.71

9.94

(0.71)

(9.63)

(0.71)

(9.63)

(0.71)

(9.63)

©.71)

(0.45)
(0.40)

(6.17)
(5.40)

As per our report of even date.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 124459W,

Rushabl
Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Organic Waste (India) Private Limi

s

Sarang Bhand
Director
DIN : 01633419

DIN 207118419

Place: Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

Date: May 16, 2024




, Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (0.71) (9.63)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Bad debts and Balance written off = =

Sundry balance written back - (0.31)
Operating profit before working capital changes (0.71) (9.94)
Movement in working capital :
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other liabilities 0.08 (1.72)
Decrease/ (Increase) in Loans and advances 1.07 11.80
Decrease/ (Increase) in Trade receivables - -
Decrease/ (Increase) in Other current / non current assets > -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 0.44 0.14
Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds) - -
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 0.44 0.14
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments including capital advances - =
Purchase of intangible asset including capital advances - -
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 5 2
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds /(Repayment) from short-term borrowings, net (0.29) (0.33)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (0.29) (0.33)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 0.15 (0.19)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.45 0.64
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 0.60 0.45
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 033 0.34
Balances with banks:
- on current accounts 0.26 0.11
Total cash & eash equivalents (Note 11) 0.60 0.45

Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 124459W),

Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Organic Waste (India) Private Limited

<_P o |
Sarang Bhand

Director
DIN : 01633419

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

Yashas Bhand
Directér
DIN : 07118419

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1 Nature Of Operations
Organic Waste (India) Private Limited ("the Company") established with the object of and engaged in the business of providing Infrastructural
Facilities as prescribed in Section 186(11) r.w. Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013 and involved in the construction, development and
maintenance of municipal solid waste-to-energy project at Bangalore.

2 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP).
The company has prepared these financial statements to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and presentation requirements of Division I of Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those of previous year unless otherwise specified.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle, and other criteria set out in the
schedule IIT to the companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of product and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of current/non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

Current-Non current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as follows:

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a.It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

b.It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

c.It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d.It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a
liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle:
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The company has
taken Operating cycle to be twelve months.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Presentation and disclosure
The Company has prepared the Financial Statements along with the relevant notes in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Act.

b. Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, estimates and disclosure
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although, these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in current

and future periods.

¢. Cash and Cash Equivalent : o
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original

maturity of three months or less.

d. Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited

CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
3 Summary of significant accounting policies

e

i

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, installation or construction including other direct expenses incurred to bring the
assets to its working condition for its intended use less accumulated depreciation,amortization, impairment, discardation and compensation.

Administration and other general overhead expenses are usually excluded from the cost of property, plant and equipments because they do not
relate to a specific property, plant and equipments. However, in some circumstances, such expenses as are specifically attributable to construction
of a project or to the acquisition of a property, plant and equipments or bringing it to its working condition, may be included as part of the cost of
the construction of project or as a part of the cost of the property, plant and equipments.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are recognized only if
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are atiributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can

be measured reliably.

Depreciation & Amortisation
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on the written down value method at the calculated rates on the basis of the useful life

specified in Part C and in the manner prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013,

. Revenue Recognition

The company, possessing an on going project, has not recognized any revenue.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss attributable
for the period attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

Income taxes
Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of

the Income Tax Act, 1961 and based on expected outcome of assessment /appeals.

Deferred tax is recognised subject to the consideration of prudence on timing differences , being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed
depreciation and losses carried forward are recognised only to the extent there is a virtual certainty of its realisation.

Impairment of Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of impairment loss. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the asset
and from its disposal are discounted to their present value using pre tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset.

Provisions and Contingencies N
Provisions are recognized in the financial statements when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an

outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The provisions are determined on the basis of a reliable estij_nate of expected
outflows of economic benefits after considering the risk specific to the liability. No provision is recognised or disclosure for oon}'lngent lla_blhty is
made when there is a possible obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed

in the financial statements.

. Going Concern

The financial statement indicates that the Company has incurred net loss and has not generated revenue dun'ng t_he current financial year. 'ijhe
company has been pursuing with Bruhata Bengaluru Mahanagar Palike (BBMP) for additional projects for bio-mining and waste to energy which
are still under discussions. Pending the resolution of the above uncertainties, the Company has prepared the aforesaid statement on a going concern

basis.




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTCO12063
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs)
4  Share capital Number of Shares Number of Shares As at As at
4 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 . March 31, 2024

Authorized share capital ——fr vlarch 51, arch 31, March 31, 2023

Equity shar:es of INR 10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) 750,000 750,000 75.00 25.00

Compulscrily convertible preference shares of INR 10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) 200,000 200,000 20,00 4ida

Optionally convertible p shares of INR10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) SI]:ODO 50:000 S:Ol] 5‘00

Total 100.00 100.00

Issued share capital

Equ_lty shares of INR 10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) : 198,504 198,504 19.85 {085

Optionally convertible preference shares of INR10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) 22.379 22,379 224 224
22,09 22.09

Subscribed and fully paid up share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) 113,504 113,504 11.35 11.35

Op convertible p shares of INR10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) 22379 22,379 224 224

Subscribed but not fully paid up share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each, partly paid up of INR 5 each (Previous year : INR 10 each, partly paid up of INR 5 each) 85,000 85,000 4.75 475

Total 17.84 17.84

(A Equity Share Capital
Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
(a) Reconciliation of fully paid up equity share capital
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T No. of Shares INR in Lakhs No. of Shares INR in Lakhs

‘At the beginning of the year 113,504 11.35 113,504 11.35

Add: Shares issued during the year i 5 = 5

Less: Shares Bought Back during the year i z = K

Outstanding at the end of the year 113,504 11.35 113,504 11.35

(b) Reconciliation of partly paid up equity share capital
Borttoil March 31, 2024 Marech 31, 2023
il No. of Shares INR in Lakhs No. of Shares INR in Lakhs

At the beginning of the year 85,000 4.25 85,000 425

Add: Shares issued during the year i z T f

Less: Shares Bought Back during the year = T L =

Qutstanding at the end of the year 85,000 4.25 85,000 4.25

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled for voting rights in proportion to its actual shareholding in the Company. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian

rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sk
In the event of liquidation of the C;
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of shares held by the shareholders.

holders in the

ing Annual General Meeting.
. the holders of shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

INR in Lakhs
4 Share capital ( )
Shares held by Holding Compan; (INR in Lakhs)
|I’arliculars Number of Shares As at Number of Shares As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Equity Shares: =Sl
Equity Shares held by Drg;mlc Reoychng_xsiemg._ Limited ("formerly known as Drggrllc Recycling System Private Limited") (Fully Paid Up) 113,503 1135 S 113,503 | 11.35
ling S Partly Paid Up) 85,000 425 85000 | 425
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares
(a) Fully paid up equity share capital
Name of shareholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
‘ : : No. of shares held | % of Holding No. of shares held | % of Holdin,
Organic Recycling System Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited") 113,503] 100.00% 113,503] 100.00%
(b) Partly paid up equity share capital
Namechsharalisr March 31,2024 : March 31,2023
: No. of shares held % of Holding No. of shares held | % of Holding
|Organic Recyeling System Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited") 85,000] 100.00% 85,000] 100.00%
Note : The Company is in the process of calling an unpaid amount of above shares which will be completed in due course.
As per the records of the company, including its and other decl received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
The company has not issued shares pursuant to any contract for consideration other than cash, Bonus shares and shares bought back during 5 preceding years.
Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of Promoter as at March 31, 2024 is as follow:
Name of Promoter As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 ":’a change
No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares | % of total shares during the year
Organic Recyeling System Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited") 198,503 | IU0.00j/J 198,503 | 100.00% -
Disclosure of shareholding of Promoter as at March 31, 2023 is as follow:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 % change
N P ter s .
ame of Promo No. of Shares | % of total shares No. of Shares | % of total shares during the year
Organic Recycling System Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited") 198,503 | 100.00% 198,503 | 100.00% -
Mr, Sarang Suhas Bhand holds 1 (one) equity share as a nominee shareholder of Organic Recycling Systems Limited and for such I (one) share beneficial interest created in favour of Organic Recycling Systems Limited.
(B) Optionally Convertible Preference Share Capital
Reconciliation of the Optionally convertible preference shares ling at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
k March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i No. of Shares INR in Lakhs No. of Shares INR in Lakhs
| At the beginning of the year i = i [ 2398 224 22,379 2.24
Add: Shares issued during the year

Less: Shares Bought Back durmg ‘the year

O ling at the end of the year

22,379




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited

CIN : U40108MP1997PTCO12063

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
4 . Share capital

(INR in Lakhs)
Terms/Rights attached to Optionally convertible preference shares ("OCPS")

The Company has one class of OCPS having par value of INR 10 per share. Each OCPS holder shall be entitled to voting rights only in ,_ of those resol

placed before the Company which directly affect the rights attached to the OCPS.
The dividend payable shall be 0.0001% p.a. on the face value of OCPS.
Each OCPS shall be converted into 1 (one) fully paid up Equity share of the Company

Shares held by Holding Company

(INR in Lakhs)
Pavticulars Number of Shares As at Number of Shares As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 h3
. Y — e s e AlIAS,eUeS 1 fMarch o, fUL |
{Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) : > March 31, 2023
Optionally Convertible Preference Shares held by Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited")
(Fully Paid Up) 22,379 2.24 22,379 224
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Optionally convertible preference shares
Name of shareholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
! . No. of shares held % of Holding No.ofsharesheld | % of Holding
Organic cling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited") 22,379 100.00% 22,379] 100.00%

As per the records of the company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

The company has not issued shares pursuant to any contract for consideration other than cash, Bonus shares and shares bought back during 5 preceding years.

Disclosure of Shareholding of Pr
Disclosure of shareholding of Promoter as at March 31, 2024 is as follow:

Name of Promoter As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 % change
Mo, of Shares %o of total shares No. of Shares | % of total shares during the year
Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited") 22,379 100.00%) 22.379 100.00% =
Disclosure of shareholding of Promoter as at March 31, 2023 is as follow:
Name of Promoter As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 % change
Mo. of Shares | % of total shares No. of Shares % of total shares during the year
anic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited") 22,379 | 100.00% 22,379 IO0.00%J- i
__(INR in Lakhs)
As at As at
B Messivuemnd spie March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Securities premium account
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,283.19 1,283.19
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year 5 i
Balance as at the end of the year | 1,283.1% 1,283.19

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year (860.15) (850.52)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year

(0.71) {9.63)
Balance as at the end of the year (860.86) (860.15)

Total reserves and surplus 422.33 423.04




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTCO12063
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

g _(INR in Lakhs)
. or m Long ter
6 g term
Borrowings Asat As at As at : As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured : e
Banks Overdraft ‘ 029 L 3
- . 0.29 - &
= (INR in Lakhs)
s urrent Long-term
7 Other Liabilities As at As at Aut e
: - : March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
‘Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 5.20 520 - -
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 758 746 " =
Payable for Expenses 2.60 2.64 - «
Total 15.38 15.30 - -
__(INR in Lakhs)
8 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax liability (A) I A
Deferred tax assets
Property, Plant and Equipment : Impact of difference between tax dep iation and depreciation/
amortization charged for the financial reporting “ .
On account of disallowance of TDS under Section 40(a)(ia) G 274
Disall of Expenditure under Section 43B - -
On unabsorbed depreciation and business loss 240.63 241.51
Gross deferred tax assets (A) 240.63 244.65
Net deferred tax Assets (A-B) 240,63 __244.65

Deferred Tax Assets to be extent recognised (refer note below)

According to the Accounting Standard AS-22, deferred tax assets should be recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised. Since the future taxable income is uncertain in near future, so Company has not recognised and has not carried forwarded any deferred tax asset.

(INR in Lakhs)
Short term Long term
9 Loans and Advances As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance to Employees 3.50 3.50 - -
Advance to vendors 221 221 - -
Loan given to Holding Company (Refer Note 16) - - 443,62 444.69

Balance with Government Authorities - - 139 1.39
Total 5.71 5.71 445,01 446.08




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP199TPTCO12063
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs)
Current Non-Current
10 Other Assets As at As at . As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Security Deposits - - 4.23 4.23
Total - - 4.23 _4.23
_(INR in Lakhs)
L As at As at
I
11 Coh dnd casienivai omts March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Cash and cash equivalents —
Cash on Hand 0.33 0.34
Bank Balances
- In current accounts 0.26 0.11
Total 0.60 0.45




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs)
12 Other income For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sundry balance written back (Refer Note 24) - 0.31
Total - 0.31

(INR in Lakhs)

13 Other expenses For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rates and taxes 0.08 0.35
Legal and professional charges 0.02 477
Payment to auditor (Refer details below) 0.60 0.60
Travelling and conveyance expenses 0.00 0.18
Lodging and Boarding expenses - 0.03
Interest and penalties - 3.83
Office expenses 0.00 0.07
Miscellaneous expenses 0.01 0.12
Total 0.71 9.94
* Payment to Auditors
As Auditors: .
Audit Fees 0.60 0.60
Other matters - =
Total 0.60 0.60




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

14. Earning Per Share

Net profit atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted number of shares outstanding for basic and diluted earning per share are as summarised below:

Parficalass For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Net profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (INR in Lakhs) (A) e (0.71) — 202?9,53)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS, Nominal value of Shares Rs. 10 each (B) 156,004 156,004
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS, Nominal value of Shares Rs. 10 each (C ) 178,383 178,383

Basic Earning per Share (A/B) (0.45) (6.17)

Diluted Earning per Share (A/C) (0.40) (5.40)

On account of losses of the company, the potential equity shares on account of conversion of preference shares will decrease the loss per share resulting to Anti-dilution for which it has not

been considered in the calculation of Dilutes EPS for the specified year, the Diluted EPS will be same as Basic EPS

15. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

(INR in Lakhs)
: For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
P
Articular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income Tax Demand for FY 2017-18. The appeal has been filed and management expects that no liability will arise 2.10 2.10
TDS Default 0.01 0.24

{Capital Commitments

There are no commitments as on the March 31, 2024

16. Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties under AS 18
Sarang S. Bhand (Director)
Key Management Personnel Yashas Bhand (Director)
Amit Vijay Karia (Director)
Holding Company Organic Recycling System Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited")

Solapur Bioenergy Systems Private Limited

Five Elements Research Foundation

Entities in which Key Management Personnel exercise Five Elements Environment Ventures Private Limited

Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited

significant influence Meerut Bioenergy Systems Private Limited

Incorp Restructuring Services LLP

Algoquest Techno Solutions Private Limited




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited

CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

16. Related party disclosures

i) Related Party transactions (including provisions and accruals)

(INR in Lakhs)
; ; ; For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Name of Related Par Relationshi Nat f
. v : P e 0f Teanunctine March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known ; Loan received 1.07 14.01
as Organic Recycling System Private Limited") Holding Compény Loan given Z =
Entities in which Key Reimbursement received for
Solapur Bioenergy Systems Private Limited Management Personnel exercise |Expenses ) j
significant influence Reimbursement expenses paid - 4.98
i) Closing Balances of Related Parties (including provisions and accruals) (INR in Lakhs)
. 1 As at As at
h
Name of Related Party Relationship Nature of Transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Director :
Sarang Bhand Advance for Expenses Receivable 3.50 3.50
. . 2 - 1.
Organic Recycling Systems Limited (*formerly known ¢y 4500 Company Loan receivable 443.62 444,69
as Organic Recycling System Private Limited")

17. Outflow in Foreign Currency

There were no foreign currency expenditure during the period (Previous Year INR Nil)

18. Inflow in Foreign Currency

There were no foreign currency earnings durihg the period (Previous Year INR Nil)




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited

CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

19. Ratio Analysis

Particulars

Basis

March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Variance % -

Current ratio

Current Assets
Current Liabilites

0.41

0.39

3.84%

Debt-Equity Ratio

Total Debt
Shareholder's Equity

NA

NA

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Earnings available for debt
service*
Debt Service**

NA

NA

Return on Equity Ratio

Net Profit after Tax - Preference
Dividend
Average Shareholder's Equity

Inventory turnover ratio

-0.16%

-2,

16%

-92.55%

Cost of Goods Sold
Average Inventory

NA

NA

Trade Receivables turnover ratio

| Net Credit Sales

Average Accounts Receivables

NA

NA

Trade payables turnover ratio

| Net Credit Purchases

Average Trade Payables

NA]

NA

Net capital turnover ratio

Net Sales
Average Working Capital

NA

NA

Net profit ratio

Net Profit
Net Sales

NA

NA

Return on Capital employed

Earning Before Interest and Tax
Capital Employed***

-0.16%

-2.18%

-92.62%

Return on investment

Interest on Investment

Average Current Investments

NA

NA

*Earning for debts Services = Net Profit Before Tax + Non Cash Operating Expenses + Interest + Other adjustment like loss on sale of property, plant and equipment etc.
**Debts Service = Interest + Principal Repayment

*+*Capital Employed = Tangible Net worth + Debts + Deferred Tax Liability

(a) Return on Equity Ratio : The ratio has improved due to decrease in losses in current year.

(b) Return on Capital Employed : The ratio has improved due to decrease in losses before interest and tax in current year.




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
20. Segment Reporting

The company is operating in single business segment i.e. construction, development and maintenance of municipal solid waste-to-energy project. Hence AS-17-- "Segment Reporting” is not

applicable.

21. In our opinon of the Board, the provision for all the known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary

22. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises based on information available with the Company is as under:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Principal amount due and remaining unpaid Z
Interest accrued and due on above and the unpaid interest 7
Interest paid 2
Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year =
Interest due and payable for the period of delay =
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid =
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years 5
23. Other Disclosures
No transactions to report against the following disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule III:
(a) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
(b) Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder
(c) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
(d) Wilful defaulter
(e) Transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
24. Write Back of Liabilities
During the year, the Company has written back following balances because they are outstanding since long period and not payable :
(INR in Lakhs
Particular For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade payable 0.31

Total




Organic Waste (India) Private Limited
CIN : U40108MP1997PTC012063

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

25. Balance under the head 'Other current liabilties' are shown as per books of accounts subject to confirmation by concerned parties and adjustment if any, on reconciliation thereof,

26. Previous year figure
Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to current year's classification.

As per our report of even date.

For Gada & Bid

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Organic Waste (India) Private Limited

ey

Sarang Bhand Yashas
Director Director
DIN : 01633419 DIN : 071118419

Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai Lo Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ty,
The Méembers of
Meerut Bio-Energy Svstems Private Limited

Report on the andit of the Financial Statements
Cpinion

We have audited the sccompanying Financial Statements of Meerut Bio-Energy Systoms
Private Limited [the "Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the Financial Statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory (nformation

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;
the aforesaid Financlal Statements give the infarmation required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in uun!urrm:y with the
accounting principles generally accepted m Indin, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024 it Loss and cash Mows lor the vear ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143 [10] of the Companles Act, 2013 Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditors responsibilitios for the audit of the Financial $Statements Section of
nur repart. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
Felevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thervunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities (n accordance with these
requimemaents and the Code of Ethics.

Wi helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provede a
batsls for our TNV

Key Audit Matters

Key Awdit Matters are those matters that in our professional judgment were of most slgnificance
in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Financlal Statements as o whole, and in forming aur opinion
therean, and we do not provide a separate opinion on thase matters.

Reporting of key Audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Lompany as it isan unlisted Company.




A GADA & BID

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Regd. off. : A/45, Nutan Jai Bharat, 5.G. Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025. .
Branch Office : A-303, Takshashila Commercial Centre, R.H.B. Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400080,
Phone : 022-35985884 : Email : solutions@gadabid.com ; Web : www.gadabid.com

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company's board of directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other Information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexure to Board's Report but does not include the Firancial Statements and our auditors
repart theran,

Our gpinion en the Financial Staterments does not cover the other information and we do nat
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

in connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our respansihility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
therwise appedrs to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is 3 matenal misstatement of this other information, we dre required to
report that fact, We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Management's responsibility for the Financial Statements

he Company's board of directors are responsthle for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of
the Act with respict Lo the preparstion of these Financial Statements that give o true and fair
view of the financial position, [mancial performonce and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indii. including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adeguate accounting records in sccordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularites:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judpments and astinmtes
that are reasenable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls; that were operating effectively lor énsuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation af the
Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from materdal misstatement,
whether due to fraud orerror,

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as spplicable, matters refated o EONE Concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intonds to liquidate
the Gompany or to ceass operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do sa

The board of directors are also res ponsible ler overseeing thi .['|'||||r:|i“'|'_|,"3, financtal 'I"-'IJ“”JI”H
roCEEs

Auditor's responsibilitics for the audit of the Financial Statements
Our nhjectives are 10 abtain reasonable assurance dbout whether the Financial Statements as 4

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraed or error, and to issue an
duditor's report that includes cur opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of nssurance bu
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i5 not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with S48 will always detect o materil
misstatement wiven it exists. Misstatements cin acise fom fraud or error and are considersi
miaterial I individually or in aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in acvordance with 5As, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain
professional shepticism throughouit the audit

We aiso;

o ldentily and assess the risks of materfal misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
abtain audit evidence that is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion
The risk of not detecting o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuiting from error, as fraod may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the avernde of internal contral,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Sectton 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsibie for expressing our opinien on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness ol accounting poelicies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disciosures made by management

« Lonclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on thy audit evidence obtained, whether o materia) uncertainty oxlsts
related to gvents or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company's ahility to
continug as a going concern. |1 we conclude that a matemal uncertainty exists, we are
reguired B drowe attention inoour auditar's feporet to the felated disclosures incthe Financial
Statements ar, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modily our apinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtalned up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company 1o cease to continue as a going concern,

o  Evaluate the overpl]l presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
ipcluding the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
tramsactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation

Materlslicy s the magnitude of misstatements o the Fuancial Statements that, indoadually aroim
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowled geable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced, We consider guantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in [i] planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
[ii) to evalwate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statemernts,




ca]  GADA&BID

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Regd. off. : /45, Nutan Jai Bharat, 5.G. Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025, _
Branch Office : A-303, Takshashila Commercial Centre, R.H.B. Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400080,
Phone : 022-35985884 : Email : solutions@gadabid.com ; Web : www.gadabid.com

We tommunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identily during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and aother matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguirds

Report on other legal and regulatory reguirements

L As required by the Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 [“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Sub-Secton {11) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2003, we ive in the Annexiure “A", g statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Urder, to the extent applicable,

2, As required hy Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

i WYe have sought and oltained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledpe and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our awdit;

b In our opmion, proper books of account as vequired by law bave beeon kept by the
Lampeny so b is ot appears lrom our examimation of those books;

¢ In our opimon, the balance sheet, the stotement of profic and loss, and the cash Now
statement dealt with Iy this report are in apreement with the books af account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaicd finascial statements comply  with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules. 202 1 specified under Section 133 of the At

£, O the basis of the written representstions received from the directors as on Mareh 31,
2{124 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as o director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the
Ack

L With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of

o the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B°. Cur report expresses an unmaoditied opinion on the adequacy
and operating effertiveness of the Company's internal financial controls aver financial
reporting

g With respect to the matter ta be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197 (16)
of the Act:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid any
remuneration bo its directors,
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h. With respect to the other matters (o be (ncluded in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Audivors] Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were anv material foresesabli losses;

ik, There were no amounis which were reguired to be translerred to the Investor
Edvcation and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. [a)] The manasgement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
na funds kave been advanced or loaned or invested [either from borrowed Rinds o
shiare premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including loreign entities [“Intermediaries”], with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall

s rectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entines identitied i any
manner whatseever ["UHtmate Beneficiaries”) by or on behall of the Company
or

e provide any guarnntee, security or the [ike to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Benslioiories;

[b] The management has represented that, w the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds heve been received by the Company fram any persons (0 entines,
including loreign entities ("Funding Parties®), with the understanding, whether
recorded in weiting or otherwise, that the Company gkl

o directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever [“Ultimate Beneficianes®] by or on behall of the
Funding Party or

s provide any pudardnbee, security or the ke from or on behall of the Dtmate
Henehicares

[c] Based on the sudit procedures that have been considersd reasonable and
appropriate in the droumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
tn believe that the representations under Sub-Clause (i} and [ii) of Rule 11{e], as
provided wnder (a] and {b) above, contain any material misstatement,

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year
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vi. Hased on our examination, which Included fest checks, the Company has used
ACCounting soltwiares for maintzining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a leature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevanl transactions
redarded in the softwares. Further during the course of our audit we did not come
arross any instance of the audit trial feature being tempered with

As proviso to Hule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Bule L1[g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preserviition of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the fimanclal year ended Mareh 31, 2024

For ada & Bid

Charteree Accountants

LAl Firm Registration Moo 124459
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Rushabh A. Gada el 7
Hartner ; :
Membership Mo 112711

Hlace: Mumbai
Late May 16, 2024
LDIN: 24112T1IBKAINTOF2Y
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report®

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section
af wir report to the members of Meerut Bio-Energy Systems Private Limited of even date)

7 BRI

“The Com pany dpes nat have an ¥ Prop Ert].-',-F’Ijint and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(i){a} of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

‘ |{h]

(el

(WY

The Company I.|-l.5ll:"'-"- not have any Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly, the
recuirement to report on Clause 3(i)(h] of the Order i not applicable to the Company,

There is mo immevable property held by the Company. Accordingly, the rr.-ql.m'emr.'nl"

to report on Clause 3(i){c] of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

| The G Company does not have any Property, Plant and I*qnlpm:—lm and In'rqngl.hle Assets, |

Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable
i Ehe Company

I:-il

Thers are no procecdings initisted or are pending against the Company for halding I

any benami property under the Prohibition of Berami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder,

The Company does not have arq.- :11upnmrn*1 .ﬁ.nm'n;llng!:,.- Thq‘r ||_=|_Iu1r|_-mun[ rn |I:'|_III|1
on Clause 3[ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

txamination ol the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or
financial (nsotutions during any peint ol time of the vear on the basls of secunity of
current gssets, Accordingly, the requirerment to report on Clause 3B} of the Order
is not applicable to T1'|1 HJIHI]]IW

During the year, the E.rrr'rlpﬂl'lir has not made mvestments, pmvlds_d an}-' gu.{rlntuu ar
security oF granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured
to companies, lirms, limited lability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,

! the requirement to peport on Clause 3(01Ea) of the Order s oot applicable to the

Company.

i {b)

e

Curing the vear, the Company has not made any investment, provided guarantees or

| given securities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ii){b) of the
[ Ghrder is not apphicable to the Company.

Accarding to the wformation and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our |

[ Puring the vear, the Company has ool granted any loans or advances in the natare of

| loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3[ii)[¢] of the Drder s pot
dpplluhlr—: Iu the O nmparn,,

Uurmﬂ Lhe vLm the Company bas not granted any loans or advances In the nature ur
[ loans, Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order s not
' '-11|JI|r|hI| to1 thes Company,
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| [e] | During the year, the Company has not granted any loans of advances in the nature of |
loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3{il){e) of the Drder is not
ap plicable to the Company

(] Elm 411,-=_r the year, the Cempany has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
lpans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(f] of the Order is not
._'||'I|1-||| able to the Compuany

[ v The :umu.u:y has not made investments, pruw:.'l::tl ny loans, E.U;Ir"dl'ltEL’h and
securities in respect of which provisions of Sections 185 are applicable and the
Company being established with the object of and engaged in the business of
providing |nfrastructural Facilities as prescribed In Section 186(11) r. w. Schedule V1, |
does pot require to comply the provision of Section 186 in respect of loan given
invesiment made, guarantee given, or security provided in connection with [oans t

! | other bodies corporate or persons,

v | The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public, nor sccepted any

amounts which are degmed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 7 of |
the Companies Act and the rules made thereuncler, to the extent applicable.
| Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3[v] of the Order s notapplicable to
the Company

vl | The Central Government has not specified the mamtenance of cost records under
Section 148 1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products fservices of the Company

vil fa] | The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees” state
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it
The provisions relating to duty of excise, sales tax, service tax & value added tax are
nat applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanations given to
us and hased on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of these statutory dues were outstanding. at the year end, for a period of maore
than six mu;nm-. friim the date they l1r.'1.d i p.l".’nh!r'

(b] | There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, E‘rﬂplD}'FH 5 it
lusurance, incame tax, customs duty, cess, and other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute, The provisions relating to duty of excise,
sales tax, service tax & value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

viil, | The Company hias not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously

. unrecorded in the boolks of accoeunt, in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act,
1961 as mcome during the vear. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Liatse
3 wiii) of the Order is notapplicable to the Company,

i {a) | The Company has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the
payment of Interest thereon to any lender,

b The Company has not been declared willul defaulter by -'lI'Ij-r hank or financial
Institution or povernment or any government authority,
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[c] | The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year, Accordingly,
the, the requirement to report on Clause (x](c} of the Order is not 3|-||-||j4_-ahj¢ o the
Lompany, R
{d) | The Company did not raise any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause (ix){d) of the Order is not applicable to the |
Campany. _
[e) | The Company does not have i subsidiaries, nssoclates or jrint ventures. ﬁcmrningl},'
the requirement to report on Clause (ix](e) of the Order i5 not applicable to the
Lompany e |
{f} | The Company does net have its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures Accordingly, |
the requirement to report on Clause [ix)(F} of the Order is not applicable to the |

X (a) | The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of an mitial puhlic ;
pfter / lurther pulblic otfer {including debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

orfully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the requirement
| to report on Clause 3[x}{b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xl {a} | Mo fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed ar
. reported during the vear |

(b) | During the vear, no report under Sub-Section IiE} of Sectlon 143 of the Companies |
ACL 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2004 with the Central Government

I_l'f- As per information and I.*.'-'.|P|-ﬂ|!:|::l|.-1-:]l:| Hj_vun T |u-.'-h; the mEn;lgement, ;..;Igﬂ mechanism /
whistie blower policy s not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the reguirement
to report on Cladse 3(xi)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xit. | {a) | The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
| 2013 Therefore, the requirement to report on Clause 3[xn){a) of the Order is nat
| applicable to the Company.

| 1{b) | The Company is not a Nidhi L'UJ;F&H? as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, Theretore, the reqgulrement to report on Clause 3[x6i][b)Y of the Order s not
applicable to the Company.

o | [€] | The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
<013, Therefore, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xii}{¢) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Eiu Tronsactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 188 of
Companies Act, 2003 where applicable and the details have been disclosed In the
notes o the Financial Stateéments, as required by the applicable Accounting Standards
| The provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the
reguirements to report under Clause 3l ) of the Order insofar as it relates to Section
l 177 of the Act is not applicable tw the Company,
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xky | Avcording to the information and explanations given 1o us and an the basis of our
examination of the records of the Compiny, the provision of Section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2003 is not applicableé to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
Loy report on Clavse 3 xiv) of the Order (s not applicable. |

| KV The Company has not éntered (nto any non-cash transactions with Its directors or

| persens connected with its divectors. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause

3(xv] of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi fa] | The provizsions of Section 45-1A of the Heserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are .
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clavse |
(xvi)[a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

I 8] The Lompany 15 not -L"IEEEIHI'_-:d in .|||.3_Eu||-lsaﬂing Financial or Housing Finance
activities, Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause (300 (B) of the Order s not
applicable to the Company.

: (] | The Company is oot a-Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made hy
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3{xvi) of the
Drder is not applicable to the Company,

{d] | There ls no Core Investment Company &5 o part of the Group, hence, the requirement

I I to report on Clause 3{xvi)(d] of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

| xvil. | The Company has Incurred cash losses of INR 5,37 Lakhs in the current year and iINR |
I .77 Lakhs in iemyonesdiately preceding financial year,

s ! — - — - =

[ 3wl There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the vear. Accordingly,

[ paragraph 3fxvill) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company

o On the basis of the hnancial ratos disclosed n note 17 to the Financial Statements,

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment ol financil
liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company isnot capable of meeting its lsbilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and whuoen they tall due within a period of ene year from the balance sheet date, We, |
Howrbser, stabe that this s ot an assuranée as to the future viability of the Company,

We further state that ouwr reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit

report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the |
Company as and when they fall due,

[ e [a4) | The privisions of Section |25 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to [Inm;:.'-jIL:l
Social Hesponsibitity = not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requlrement
| o report on Glause 2{xxi{a) ol the Order s not applicable to the Company, |
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(B} | The provisions ol Section 135 to the Companles Act, 2013 in relation w Corporate |

5 £ ol . = s . |

[ Sucial Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requlrement |
to report on Clause 3{xx](b] of the Order is not applicable te the Company

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Acoountants
ICAl Fiem Registration Noo LZ4459W

3

Rushabh A, Gada R
Parter e
Membership No: 112711

Hlace: Mumbas
Diate: May 16, 2024
LIOIN: 241127 LIBEAINTRT 23
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Annexure "B” to the Independent Auditor's Report

[Referred to in paragraph 2 (] under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Sectlon of our report to the Members of Meerut Bio-Energy Systems Private Limited of even
date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of sub -
Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act”)

We lave audited the internal financial controls over fnanclal reporting of Meerut Bio-Energy
systems Private Limited (the "Company®) as at March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our sudit of
the Financial Statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date,

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The beard of directors of the Company 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company consldering the essential components of internal control stated (o the Guldanee
Mate on Audit of Internal Fingnctal Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the arderly and efficient conduct ot its business, the safeguarding of 115 assots, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of refiable financial information. as required under the Companies
Ak 2013

Auditors’ responsibility

Uur responsibility 15 1o express an opinion on the iaternal nancal contrals over [fimancil
reporting of the Company based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Fimancial Controls Over Financial Reporting [the "Guidance
Note"] ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 ta the extent applicable to an
audit ol internal finoncial controls. Those Standards and the guidance nme require that we
compy with ethical requirements and plan apnd perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial contrals over linancial reporting were
established and maintainad and iFsuch controls operated efeetively in all material respects

Chae gudit Invelves performing procedures 1o abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial contreds aver inancial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of mternal financial controls over Mnancal reporbing, assessing the risk that o material weakness
exists, and testing ond evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of imterpal control
bazed on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessmient of the risks of moatorial misstatement In the Floancial Statements: whether due to
fraucl OF ercor.

I|l|.-|.l.--l.' = :::ll
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Wi beliove that thi audit svidence we have abtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for sur audit opinion oo the Company's interial Tnancia] control syscem over fAnancil
FEpOrHng,

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A Company's internal financal control over financial reporting 15 a process desipned Lo provide
reqsorable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting. and the preéparation of
Fimancial Statements for external purposes (o accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that [1) pertam to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detal,
iWeurately and lairly reffect the transactions and dispositiens of the assets of the Company: (1]
provide reasonahie assurance that transactions are recorded as AeCeEsEry Do pormit preparation
of Finangial Stitements in accordance with generlly accepted accounting peinciples, and that
receipts and  expenditures of the Company are being made only in ageordance. with
authonsations of management and directors of the Company: and (iii] provide reaspnable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unsuthorised acguisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material offece on the Financial Statements,

Limitations of internal Anancial controls over financial repocting

Because of the mberent limitations of internsl fnancial controls over financial reporting,
Including the possibility ¢f collusion of improper management of override ol contrels, material
misstatements due to ervor or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls aver financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal fnancial control over financal reporting may become inadequata
recause of changes in conditions, or that the degree ol compliance with the policies or
[rrocedures may deterisriate

Dpinien

In our opimien and sceording to the infermation and explanations given to ok, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate mtersal Anancial contral system over financial roporting
and sach internal Ananclal controls over financial reporting were operating elfectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of imternal control stated in the Guidance Mote
on Auwdit of Internal Floancial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartersd Accountants al India

For Sada & Bid

Chartered Accountints
ILAL Firm Registration Soo L3RG OW

&% B\

- i Foph d
o T fP e
- L i e 1
Rushabh A, Gaia B H ,_"“j ]
Partner B
Membership No- 112711

- e
Sy — i

AL
Wace! Mumbii

Date: May 16, 2024

DIM: 241127 1IBEKAINTGRT23



Mecrut Bio-Energy Systems Private Limited
JOIN | U745 H201 TRTC2 94803
Balznce Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs)
As i Az al
Particulars
o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equuity and liabilities
Sharecholders” funds
Share capital . [Hii] (]
Reserves and sorplus 5 27.72) (22.35)
(26.72) [21.25)
Mon-current Enbilities
Lomp-term bamowings ) 10T 14 50
Oither Long-term lishilities T X -
10.79 34,30
Current Linhilities
Short-term bomowings 4 . x
Other current liahilites 7 1.59 1.51
1.59 1.51
Tutal I divhy 1 4.t
Agsels
Shori-term loans and advances
Property, Plant & Equipment and [ntangible assets
-Capital Work in Progress E 13.98 13.98
13.08 13.98
Current mssets
Cash and cash equivalents g .68 (.68
LKt .68
Total 1 4.6 14,66
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

A per our repor ol even &abe,

For Gada & Bid

Rbzhabh A Gada
Pariner
Sdembership Mo 112711

Plgee Bdumbai
Dater Mzy 16, 2024

Taar and on belalf of e Board of Direstors
Meerul Blo-Energy Systems Private Limited

(B2
Sarang Bhand

EMrector
DIk - 01633410

Place: Wumhbai
Date; My 16, 2024

D py
Kirit Sheth
Thirector
DN | DRO05080

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024




Meerut Bio-Energy Systems Private Lissfied
CIN | LTS bAH 0] TRTCEGER
Stateswend of Frofid and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particubars

Moades

(INR bn Lakhs cocept enrndsg per share)

Fuor the Year Ended Far ibe Year Ended

I eme

Roveros from operations
Cher moome

Total Incoms (i)

Expsenics
Oher expenses
Toral expenses (i)

Lass hefore exceptional and extraordinary item and tax [iii = i-i)
Exceptional items (1v)

Lass befure Exframrdinary ibom amd tax {v= dl-iv)

Extracedmany Theme [vi)

Lizs hefore Tax [vi v-vi)

Tax Expenses {viii)

CuEnen) tan

Dredenred ax

Shertd Exetes) provision of tax of earlier years
Tatsl tax expenses

Lass Fur the vear (ix= vil-vidi)

Earnings per equity share {in INR) [sominal valee of TSR 16 per share

(Mlapch 31, 2633 - INR 10 per sharej]
Basc
[ilueed

5 off signibicanl ae - Kcies

March 31, 3024 Murch 31, 2023

477

4LT7

{477}

(4.77]

(4.T7)

)

(4,77

153.69)
{3365

(4700}
{47.6H])

As per our report of even daie

For Gmla & Eid
Chirtersd Accousganta

Wlembership oo 11271

Place: Mumrnbad
[rpge: bay 16, 2024

For and on behadl of the Board of Dirzcions
Sdeerat Bo-Energy Systems PFrivate Limbed

l—*@"‘gr 2003,

Haraeg Bhand Ii.‘u-itshm
Drireciar

DI - 01633415 I]J"-.- C{HNGEDRD
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumihad
Drate: Mav 16, 2024 Ciae: Bay 16, B4




~ Meerut Bio-Energy Svetems Private Linited
O - UT4099H201 TP TC298803
Cash Flow Statement for the yoar ended March 11, 2004

i {INR in Lalhs)

Particalary For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash Mlow from opersting sctivities
Profit / (Liose) hefises Tax (537) 47T
Movement in working eapital -
Increase’ {Mecrens=] in Other liahilites 0,08 0.0
Cash generated fromiused in) operations (5.29) {4.46)
Dhirect Taxes pakd {mel of relunds) = =
Nt cash flow from aperating acfivities (A) {5,200 (4.46)
Cash fow from investing sctivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments including capital advances = =
Purchase of intangible asset mchuding capital advances
Net cash used in investing activities () = al
Cash flow from Anancing activities
Proceeds /{Repayment) from long-term borrowings including cumant 529 446
Aty met
Mt cash wsed in inancing activities () .19 4.46
Net increasefdecresse) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) {00 =
Cash and Cash Equivalents at thie beginning of the period .68 63
Cash and cazh equivalents af end of the period 0,68 LG8
Componenis of cash amd cash equivalents
Cash o band 0.68 .68
Balances with banks;
« 0 guETenf agcounts ar =
.68 0,68

Total cash & cash equivalents [Mote 9)

Summary of significant scoounting policies

A5 per our report of even data.

For Gada & Bid

Rushabh A, Gada
Famner
hefembership Mo.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Drale: hay 16, 2024

For and on behatf of the Board of THrectors
Meerut Bio-Energy Systems Private Limited

ﬂ"ﬂ%}g p

Sarung Bhand
Director
DIM ;01635219

Flace: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

Kirit Sheih
Ihirecior
DB E0055E0

Place: Mumbai
Deate: May 16, 2024




Meerat Bin-Energy Systems Privage Limited
CIN LIPS H20 ] TPTCISE80S
Mates to Anancis] statcaests for te year ended March 31, 26324

I Msture of Ops ration

Meenit Bio-onergy Systems Private Limid (“the Company™} established with the object of md engaged in the business of providing
Irfrastroctural Facilites s peescribed in Seotion 186{11) rw. Schedule VT of the Companies Act, 2013 sad svolved in the Cosotnictios,

Dewelopment and Manterance of Municipal solid wasle-l-gnengy project at beet.

Th Cogeany kais been promoted by Orgaas: Reseling Systems Limited Cfomerly Inves ss Oeganke Resading Syetams Private Limited),
which i the Holding sompany of the Compeny.

1 Baxls of neesunting and preparntion of financlal statemesis

The financial satements of the Cospany hivs been prepaned i accordesce with penerally seeepied secounting priseiples in India (Indian
GRAAF). The cosmpany bas propared these finaneiel staterems to comply with #w Accoanting Standands notified under Section 133 of the
Compamies Ak, 2013 read with the Companies (Aosountng Standards) Rules, 3021 and pesseniation nequinmsints of THvigon 1 of Schedule I
58 B Companies Act, 200135, The fieoncial siatesenes fave bisn propansd on peing moncem besis under ihe hiviorical oost comvencdn o0 occrml
bersis. The aresasting polksns sdopbed m the preparstion of the fmancial siessnt e cenlient with thoes of previous yor unless ciberwise

speifiad.

Al aserts e linbilities have been classifed ad Gimat o nof-Garment as per e company's somed spesaing cpole, pmd oiber critena 51 00 in
the schedule T g0 the companses Act, 2003, Based on the neture of product sed the tims betwan the acquisition of assets for procossing and
their realization m cesh snd sk equivelests, Be Company bas ascenained its operating cyole a5 up 0 twelve monihs for o purpoess of
cureit'tea- Surmant classiBeation of assats end Habilices

Corresd-Now current class| s i

All asseds sl Habilities am classified o cerreat sed non-ourrsn 2= follvos:

Asseis;

Am nsset is clnssified w cursnt whis it satisfies sy of the following eritenia:

A 00 iE enpected to be realised in, o is inlended for sale oF comsumption in, the cempany’s normal aperating cycle;

bt & keld primarily fr the purpos of being troded,

&l is mepmctad tn be realisad witkin 13 monits: afieg 1he mepotmg et or

AT 15 cash or ¢ash oguivilent unless & is restricted {hom: being exchanged or esed 0 semle @ Wabiliy G gt st 12 monghs after the meporting
dats.

Cument a23es inchude the curnent portaon of non-purresd fineociel nesees. AH other 2sse ane cassiiied & nom-ourmend

Linbiliibes:

A liwsslity is clagwified as curmmnt when it satisfies any of the followsag onsene

[, b s expecas] oo b seided in e corapsny's normal operating cyole;

be [ i beld primasily far il pumposs of being radsd,

¢ H i dus to be settled within 12 mondks after the reparting date, &

. Thi Commpany does not lave an unconditional right o defer settlamens of the Imbility for of less 12 mongis after the reporting dete. Tenms of a
linkality that eould, & fhe aggion of the coumerpirty, resal in its sefthemsmnt by the issus ol @juity instraments do pod alfes ils chisidiciion,

Cment labilities include comren portios of noa-current Arancal labilises, ATl oiber lsbsfies are ¢lassifed a5 nom-currest.

Chperating cycke:
Operaling <yvle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing end their ralisation in cash or cesh equivelents. The company has

taken Operaimg, ovele o be raske moeks

3 Eemmmary of significant accosnting pelicies

Presemtation and dischsiing
The Campany kas prepared the Foancnl Stetements along with the relevant noies in sccordence with the regerements of Scheduls 10 of the

Act

Lse of pslimates

Thi: preparation of finmocisd statements in conformity with fudian GAAF regeres the manzgement o make pdgments, eastimales and dclosups
thit affiset thi reportad amous of nvisiie, @spensed, aets and Babilities and declosine of coatagent linhilines, at the and of the reporting
period. Alhough, thess estimales 2re based on the mezagement's best knowiedge of cumet events and actions. uncenainly abou these
axsurnitl Gna anel sstimates seuld result in the aulsames requiring a materil adjustment 10 the ceerying amounts of ssseis or lishilites & curment

and future pariods.

Tzl and Caih Equivabent
Cosh and cesh equivelents for the purposes of cosh flow statement comprise cash at lank md in fand and shen-ierm imessnments with an

arig=al muturity ol three manths o less,

Cask Flow Statemoni
Cask flows are reparted using fhe indinsct methid, whersby prafit § (loss) Belone suraedinary frems aed o is adjusied for the elfiis of
transectiong of moe-Cash mare and any defereals or acoruals of past or future cash receipts or poyments. The cazh feees [Fom operatisg, imvesting

and Fmancing activibies of the Company s sapregeted beased on the available mifemanen




Mistrud Hin-Energy Systems Private Limiled

I UTErsd 20 TETCISE80

Mutes b Bnancial sistements For the year cnded March 31, 2024
1 Sommary of signifcam scosunting policy

e FProperty, Plant and Equigmest

Property, Plast and Equipeoent e staied ot cost of pequisimon, insindleton of eomtnesion including other drect expenses incumed to bricg e
asseds bo it working condition for iis ineended i82 les pecumulsted depragiatios, meonization, npesment, diseardackon and compenstion.

Acrrirasivation and otker general ovechmd expenses nre usunlly exeludsd finm the cest of proparty, plart and sqaipments becauss they do net
reiste to o specifiz propety, plant and squipments. Hovever, in sone croumstances, sach expenses a5 ane specifically aneibustds oo constrction
o' 8 prodiect of L the scquisition of o property, plant and equipments or beinging il 1o & woeking condition, may be included as part of the post of
Lk corstraction of projest or &2 & gan of the costof the propercy, plee? end equipmenis,

aing or lnzses srising from derecogrition of Propersy, plant and equipment are messared as the difference betosen the ret disposal proceeds and
thé camying smount of the et and ese reopmized in the staement of profit and loes when the asset i derecognized.

Enrmings Per Shire

Baaic-esning per share is celeubied by dhiding the et prodic or beae for Bhe yior sdribatable t8 equity sharehalders by the weighted average
mamber of equity shases ouistesding during the period. For the purpese of calewivting dluted eamings per gbane, the e prafin or loss o te period
dliribgable o0 squity shareholders md he weighted average nanser of shares oulsiinding during e pericd & adjusted for the effects of =l
dalluiive poseRial ety shines

Imenme taes
T om ineome for the pormens perind & determiegd o (he biis of by tvoame and tax credits computed in accocdance with the: provisions of
the Ineome Tax Act, 1961 and bed on expected cionme of nssessment fappeals.

Deherred B - i5 recogmise] subest i e considerstion of prudence on tmisg differsnces | being B Gfference bebaeen tmmbde income mnl
acconmting ineome thal origess i onn pernd and am capable of reereal in ome or moce sebssquent periods Deferred fix asseis oo enatmochal
deprecintion md kosmes corried forwned are recogrdsed ondy 1o the e thess & a viriusl eotamty of fis sealization

Froviniess and Caningencis

Provvisivns ore recogrdeed in e Tnseciu) soements when the Company his o present obligation o= & reesll of past gvent & L i probetée ths &
ouiflow of sconomic benefits waill be sequined v setile te obligation The proviaion see desrmined on the bass ol reliable etimats of sacpeced
oulflows of econamic beredits after ponsidering the visk specifio to the Hahility.




Mecryd Bis-Enorpy Syaices Privedc Limied
CIH L B0 FH 20 TR TC 2 RS
Wi 10 Ninancial siabemosts for the year eaded March 31, 2034

IMNH s
. B Mumber of Shires Mumbsr of Shares Axal {FHN
RNl Mareh 30, 30X Mprch 31, 203 Afarch ¥, 2024 Allurch 31, 202
Aathorizal share capital e g
Equiry sheres of THR [0 sach {Previous vesr - VR 10 each) 113,00 10,000 1.00 B0
Tutal Lo Al
Issued, sutserited and fully pald up share cipisl
Exguity shores of THE 10 each {Previous year : N8 10ach) 100,060 10,000 LW L0
Tuial 1041 L
Beegungiliation of (b equity shares ostataniing af the beginning asd ot the end of the reporting perid:
[muu.- [ Mamhalami March3l3md |
I Do of Sharek lakhs | Neofferes | [NRin Lakks |
£ 10,000 LM 10,00
0 ] O] L0

TormaTtighiss afiselnhd 16 cpaity vhare

The Crngany bas only ons ol of squity shares having o par vale of PR 10 par shire, Esck holdir of squity sheres i etitled far vating rights o proporios 1 i3 sens! sharshelding in the Company. The Conpany declars mad
s dnvidends &= [ndian rapees. The dividend proposed by the Boand of Dimcioes is subyect 1o the sgproal of the Sheeeholkdes in the wrening Amnoal Geseral Mesting.

In fhe event of liguidation of the Compeny, the bolders of shans wil be sobtied 1o sootve ramameng ot of e company, s diststion of § posfeemtial amouns.

T distrizution willl be i mopakan fo the ounber of share: Beld by tha shacoholdars

Bhares kel Ly . (INF fm Lakhs)
Hminber of Sharms Az ad Mamber of Shares ALl
; 2 - - i March 11, 24 Morch 31,2034 | Marek 31,2003 J March 31, Jur3
{Eguity Steres held by Chyganis Recvsling Syitenms Limiled (ot kawn s Organis Becyeling Systems Priveie Limibed) 10,000 | oo 1o | .00
S moyy Ehan 9% Bqeey Shars

Mirch 31, 124 [ s
= M. off she res S i e
knows m 1 i Prvaie Limyiied} L0200 L0 B [1fae]] 10000

A per the reconds ol the mpasy, Scdudeg s reginer of shoreheldesstmesnbers sl pfes declisation mcsived from shareholders regarding tenaficial intersct, the above shardholding represests bath legel sed beneficial cererhip
of skares.

The oompny R il v Shan pasdan Wy cooeee fod coalidention oher thee Sich, Bore shores ind sheres bosght tback dunng * preceding vess.
Disclessmne of Sharcholdiog of Presicr

Titsclrsare of shesehalding of Prometer 25 ot harch 3, 2004 it s Sollow: L »
s it Mamgh 31, I0zd Mg g Mareh 31, I0Z3 T ehanpe
Name ramoler L L L
i w_jm | af Shares %% of ininl share during the year

{Dinanic: Recpeling Synem Limited {"frmery known e Crgenic Recycing Sysems Privise Linited) 10,00 1 LO.000 L0015 2
L] atevsinbfioe of Promoter i at bach 31, 2003 i 0 Ellow
mame af Fromotr BT | Ad ot March 31, 2031

Mool Shapes % olinis] slargs | Fo,afSharms | %% of tofnl shares |

10,000 _1ons] 10000 | L 040 %)




Mexrut Bin-Energy Sy Privaie Limiicd
TN - IR0 RN TPTC SERDS
Misbes by Smancial statements for the year taded March 31, 2024

(IME i Lakhs)
& Reserves sni surplus Azt As at
March 31, 2024 Mlurch 31, 2023
Surplis in (e Seatement of Profit aal Loss
Halance & & 9 beprning H_Eu panod {22 EETH
Audd: Prodi [ {Loos) for e period {537 {437
Balzeee a5 af the el of the perisd LTI mjjk
Toidnl peserves and smrplas {17.72) (12.38)
(14 b L)
Shori cernm Laveg dsrmy
6 Barrow g by it Asal Anmt s
Niarch 31, M4 March 31, J0Z3 Minrch 31, 3024 Mlharch 31, Bkd
Unsecured — == —
Erom relaid parties {Refr Mote 1) - - 3075 . 34,4
Tl = - KR 4.0
Umswcumend huan 1aken frem relased partics ©
Shart term Lasg term
Particalar sl Asai Anal A= ol
March 31, 18i4 March 51, 2023 Mbsrch 31, 3024 March 31, 2023
Halding cempany™® . s ET] M
Tatal = - 3470 LD
Terma und conditions of wescs roal Sbrroing |
*There is o specific repayment schedile of this kng tem loan. Howeeer @ per the agrecment exeouted, this loan will bave w0 sepeid o o after March 31, 2008 s inteest @00
i = {INE in Lakhsh
Curresi Lang-brrm
T inher Liskdllies LR sk sl Asal
Mlbwrch 31, DR Pelmrch J1, 3860 Mlarch ¥, 3024 Flarch 31, 2023
Entmtary fuers inscali g proiden Tumd ol e delocned o aodeoe [FNT] o4 2 e
Sundey Crodviets for Expassey 025 s i =
Payvatle fix Expesses & 064 - &

Taral

158 1.51 - =




lnrrat Mio-Emergy Systems Privvie Limissd
CIB - S0 | TPTCIOERGY

Mstes b financiil statemrmts B il your o] March 31, 2004

(N in Lakhs)
E  Capital Work in Frogres: Amount
Cirnas Valse
At March 31, 3022 139
Auddition -
Diisgposls .
Ak Manch 31, 20X} 120
Addition =
Digpnsals =
&8 Blarch X1, 2024 13,98
Diepreciation’ s nrrtEntisn
At March 31, 2022 -
(arge for the peniod =
Crigpeonta .
Al March 31, 2023 =
Cherge for the period E
Dispoeals 5
Al Mlisrck 31, 2034 K 2
Ml Baok Valoe
Al March 31, 2023 13,54
A Melarch 31, D024 1%
{n)  For Capital-work-in progeess, fallowbeg apeing sehedmle shall ke given:
CWIP g vehedule (IR fa L)
Amgmsl i CWI for o period of | Total
Lass than 1 wesr 13 years 2.3 yrara | Mure than 3
P - =1 13,98 13.98
wrbiese completion i avenbse or has enceeded it cost com
= ﬁh@m-
ihan | 1-2 years 2-3 yesrw Mary than 3 yrary
1 = = - 13,58
Adiaf At mt
¥ Caxh e cash aqquivalinis March Fi, 224 Maach 31, MG3
Cash amed exshy equinmlests
Cach oo Hand &% 1
Eank Bulinoes
= bn current eoopants . =
Tortal (] s




Meerut Blo-Esergy Sysienes Frivate Limdoed
CIM : TR0 TPTC20ER0
Nuted in finnncial statemewts for tve vear ended March 31, 2004

ol (IR i Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Endid
s sealiinios Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2013
Raies v tacees 08 {11
Legal e professiomal charges UK v 1.59
Pyt to audiior (Refer deiala below) 060 L6l
Travelling and conveynncs sxpamses L1k 1151
Laxiging #eidl Bosrfing expenses 507 .07
[mterest and pemaities a2 (.06
Office expenses - .
Testimg charpea = "
Hurvey charpes ot E
Fislance writien ofT = :
Bfiscellaneous sxpemes 1.58 .63
Posiage & Courier Expenses il =
Tatal 237 4.77
* Paymeent to Awditors
EETNT
Fondit P L0 .60
Crtber muottoers = z
Total 0.50 L]




Muieriui Ris-Energy Svitems Private Limited
CIM - L7499 H200 TPTCZ 2ER03

Mutes in finapcial statements for the vear ended March 31, 3024

11, Earning Per Share

Met profit atiribuwtable i equity shareholders and the weighied number of shares outstaniling for basic and dilated earning per shirs are a3 summrised below:

Particalars Faor the Year Ended Far the Vear Ended
March 31, 2024 March 51, 2023
& profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (TINR in Lakhsj{A) (5371 [4.77]]
‘Weighted average numiber of equity shares for calcalating basic EPS, Nominal value of Shares Rs. 10 each (B) 10, D0 10,000
| Weighiod average number of equity shares for caleulating difuted EPS, Nomisal vabee of Sikeres Bs. 10 each (C ) 10,000 10,000
|Basle Earning per Share (A/H) {5364 (47.68)
Diluted Earning per Share (ASC) TR (4 76H)
12, Contimgent Liabilities & Commidtments
There s no comtingent lability & Commitment as on March 11, 2024
13, Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and reluted party relaticnship
Relsted parties under AS 1§
Sprang 5. Bhand (Ddpoctor) -
Eey Manapenent Personnel Kirit Sheih {Dircctor} = =
Hulding Com Orgenic Recycling System Limited (*formerfy known 35 Organic Ei.:gﬁi_lng Systems Private Limited)
Solapar Bisenergy Systems Private Limived | O B
| Orpandc Waste (India) Private Limited . —n =
o, e ... |Pune Urban Recyrless Private Limited
i Key Manapemenl Fersonned —
E"mwh d . ‘irwml-['uldrnemd Services Private Lisdied y
Hay Capital Advisors Private Limited - B
Wachstum Treding Private Limited = =
Abeariir Contempo Traders Privage Limited
P includ inns r (MK in Lakhs)
i L For the Year Ended For the Year Eanded
Mame af Reluted Party Relatinnship Mature of Transaction Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2823
Organic Recyeling System Limited (‘fomerty knowny || oo i o POt -t = AR
as Drganic Recyeling Sysems Private Limiied) Limsecured Loan Repaid .
i} Chosi  of Related Parties (including provisions and sceruaby
: A al
| Mame of Related Party Relationship Poactsore: ol Wi i March 31, 2024
iugmi: Recycling Syvstem Limated (fomesly known ; - I ;
ns Drganic Recycling Systems Private Limised) g L v il ding




Meernt Bio-Energy Systems Frivaie Limited
CIM - UT400un 201 TPTC256800

Nartes to fiennclal statements for the vear ended March 51, 2024

14, Duifiow im Forelgn Carrency

Theme were oo [ereiEn cumency expendinre during e period (Proviais Year (MR 561

15, Inflow im Foreigo Currency

There were mo fiwelpn mirrency samings diring the period (Previous Yiesr ISR Rl

Vi Goiag Concera

The oompany was formsed a8 4n 5PV 10 Sxoquls the Consessio Agreement dated 2 Janvoary 2017 eatered betveen Organds Recydling Systems e, Lod (holdisg compeery’) and Magnr Migam
Mioeut (WM Ear of S00 TPD waste 1 energy planl o Meeut on DBOCT basis. The plant of 800 TPD was split imia two phases — 1 plegs of 400 TPD each. The award of the final
agresmei 5 subject w order of the Allahsbad TIC, 'I‘hllﬂﬂhmdﬂimmlﬂmwhmmmwmmﬂmmm & heand & decided Mo hesring bas
bappened on the matier Gl dege, The compiay & pursuing the matier and i bopefiol of @ favourable ooder pesding which fhe proicct is en bald. Theregore the company 5 @il sctive and is a

EOVNE COMCErm.
17, Ratio Analysis
| Particulars Hasis s mi March 39, 2024 | Asat March 31, 2023 ¥ariance %
{CLirrent mti NNt Asss (43 045 i
i"" o urrent Liabilries ety , P
Diche-Equily Ratio Tonl Dot 143y {1.52H -1k
e |Shoreholder'sBomiey ) 0 el = 1 o el |
Db Servics Crevempe Entin Eamings ovmilahis for deby. HA Ha =
- Ll
] | D Sevict = S e e .
Reesum om Exquity Fatio  [4ek Frofil afier Tos - Prederence =22 345 25.13% =10 1%
[Hviskend
St L, ks Avernge Bhareholder's Fowity =
[mventory tamioves ratin ot ol Gioods Sold Mal NA -
e (A venteey - — _ 1
Teade Foosivabies amover ratho | et Credit Sales i HA T 4
R o s e dccomnis Recsvahles T [ . Eotic, P
Traile payabbes TEMOVE ratio et Crestt Parchises M Ha|
= — Movieras Trivie Paybhe ——r | N . [
Mt cagédnl furtover ratia Ht Salis Ma HMa o
Foverame Warking Capital T
Mt predil atio et Profe. A A .
: il bt Sales e |0 T T BY A o sl
o Coviiad Brioysd 1 41.07% o5 5% 13,300
Capitl Employed***
Foetom o mvestemenl Imerest on frvestment HA A .
Average. Current Instmenis

*Eaming for debts Servioes = Mt Profit Befors Tax + bon Cadk Operating Expenses + Inberest + Other adjestment like loss o sale of property, plant and equipment eic,

#*Dickn Service = Entesest + Priscipal Repayment

=eu apicel Emplayed = Tangible Ho werth + Dicbits + Dofamed Tas Linbilicy

Expdanations o skanileami

There @ no sipnificen variation {i.e, change of 15% or moee o5 compared to FY 2002-25) in ratios,




Mesrut Bis-Energy Syztems Private Limided
Ol - LTSS H201 TFTC298E0T

Muotes tn financial sintements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2024

18, Segment Reporting

The company is eperating in single business segment Le. construction, development and maintenance of mumizipal solid wasteso-coergy prject. Hence AS-17 - "Segment Reparting” is

nod applicable,

10, Details of does to micro and small enterprises & defined under the MSMED Az, 20048

Princi amount de and remesning '-F“E'“"

The cetails of amounts outstanding to Micry, Small and Medsum Enterprises based on Ieformatson available with the i &5 under:
Farticulars ABM A
; March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

o ==
.“’E.Eﬂt_m?hfﬂﬂﬂ  ppoined day duwing the yeor =
Tterest due and payable for the period of delay _

Interest peonued and remaimingunpaid
hmumdﬁmhcrmmmdmmﬂpqmﬂ Mﬁ'ﬂam

0. Deferred Tax

According to the Aconenting Stasdard AS-22, deferred tax assets should be recognised and carried forwsrd only to the exsent that thers & n reaspoable certrinty that sufficlent fnture
tbie income will be avadlable against which such defirred tax assets can be realised, Since thers is no ressonable certalnty of sulfichent future tomble income, deforred toy sesets has not

been recognised.
21. Oiher Disclosures

Mo transactions &o report against the following disclosens requirements as notified by MCA purseant to amended Schedube T

{a) Crypto Currency or Virtuul Currency
{b) Benami Property held under Prokibition of Beasm| Property Transactiong Act, 1988 and rufes made (hereunder
{c} Registrution of charpes or mtisfaction with Registrar of Companies

) Wilful defsuber

{&] Tramsactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Compemizs Act, 2003 or Bection 560 of Companies Act, 1936,

7. Balases under the head 'Other current linbilities' are shown ns per books of accoumts subject to confirmation by concemed parties and adjustreats if any, on recoaciliation thereol.




Mlowrul Bio-Energy Systeme Private Limited
CIN = LTSN HI0 1 TFTC 29REN

Mites 1o fnancial statements for the yvear ended March 21, 2024
23, Previous vear figure

Previous yeer's figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm fo current vesr's classification,
A per our repor of even date,

For Guila & Hid
Chariered Accosmisnts
Fimm Regiztration Mo: 12445

bhi A Gioda
Pariner
Memhership Mo,: 112711

Place: dMambai
Diie: My 16, 2024

For asd on behalf of the Board of Directors
Meerut Bin-Energy Systoms Privale Limited

b5 o .

Surang Bhaml Kirin Shen
Drirecing D¥iroolor

CHIRY : DI533541% DI - RODSGRS
Phice: Mumbaj Pl humbai

Diate: May 16, 2024 Diate; May 16, 2024
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To,
The Members of
Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Pune Urban Recyclers Private
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its Loss and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements Section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our professional judgment were of most significance
in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as itis an unlisted Company.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexure to Board’s Report but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material Misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section134 (5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

1]
The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

- '-:I“ é‘/j’l\
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

X
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. In our opinion, the balance sheet, the Statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e* On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting;
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g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Company or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under Sub-Clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the softwares. Further during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trial feature being tempered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

h.  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197 (16)
of the Act:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
any remuneration to its directors.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 124459W

— / / ’_) v
\._, . \V' ha
Rushabh A. Gada

Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024
UDIN: 24112711BKAINV3814
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section
of our report to the members of Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited of even date)

(a)

The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(i)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b)

The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(i)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c)

There is no immovable property held by the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)

The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e)

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a)

The Company does not have any inventories. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on Clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

il

(a)

During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b)

During the year, the Company has not made any investment, provided guarantees or
given securities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c)

During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d)

During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(e) | During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(f) | During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of |
loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not made investments, provided any loans, guarantees and
securities in respect of which provisions of Sections 185 are applicable and the
Company being established with the object of and engaged in the business of
providing Infrastructural Facilities as prescribed in Section 186(11) r. w. Schedule VI,
does not require to comply the provision of Section 186 in respect of loan given
investment made, guarantee given, or security provided in connection with loans to
other bodies corporate or persons.

V. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Vi, The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

vii. (a) | The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to
it. The provisions relating to duty of excise, sales tax, service tax & value added tax are
not applicable to the company. According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of statutory dues outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable, except TDS Rs. 0.85 Lakhs and
Interest on TDS Rs. 0.11 Lakhs.

(b) | There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, customs duty, cess, and other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute. The provisions relating to duty of excise,
sales tax, service tax & value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

Viji. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
' unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

IX. (a) | The Company has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) | The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.
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(c) | The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) | The Company did not raise any funds on short term basis during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(e) | The Company does not have its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f) | The Company does not have its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

% (a) | The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of an initial public
offer / further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) | The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

XI. (a) | No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) | During the year, no report under Sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) | As per information and explanation given to us by the management, Vigil mechanism
/ whistle blower policy is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Xil. (a) | The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) | The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

. | (¢) | The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Xiil. Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the Financial Statements, as required by the applicable Accounting
Standards. The provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under Clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it
relates to Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
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Xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the provision of Section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

XV The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors. Accordingly, requirement to report on Clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. | (a) | The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) | The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(c) | The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) | There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

XVii. The Company has incurred cash losses of INR 0.67 Lakhs in the current year and
incurred cash losses of INR 1.38 Lakhs in immediately preceding financial year.

XVviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xi%, On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 16 to the Financial Statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX. (a) | The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate
Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

oA fen—L
O YREE R N+ )
r §>\\ {\{‘(«”Nw‘{“ ]
R e \Z\MUMBAT,
o NG

> Py 4
N

>
- N T4




GADA & BID
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Regd. off. : A/45, Nutan Jai Bharat, S.G. Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025.
Branch Office : A-303, Takshashila Commercial Centre, R.H.B. Road, Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400080.
Phone : 022-35985884 : Email : solutions@gadabid.com ; Web : www.gadabid.com

(b) | The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate
Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 124459W
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Rushabh A. Gada N7\
Partner

Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024
UDIN : 24112711BKAINV3814
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report to the Members of Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of sub -
Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pune Urban Recyclers
Private Limited (the “Company”) as at March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the guidance note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
integnal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A Company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 124459W

Rushabh A. Gada
Partner :
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024
UDIN: 24112711BKAINV3814



Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited
CIN : U40300MH2005PTC150860
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes s Asgt
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders® funds
Share capital 4 1.00 1.00
Reserves and surplus 5 (236.22) (235.55)
(235.22) (234.55)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 6 229.04 228.57
Other Long-term liabilities 7 - =
229.04 228.57
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 6 - =
Other current liabilities 7 6.22 6.14
6.22 6.14
Total 0.04 0.17
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 0.04 0.17
0.04 0.17
Total 0.04 0.17
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

As per our report of even date.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 124459W

Rus
Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited

[E =2 A

Sarang Bhand Kirit Sheth
Director Director

DIN : 01633419 DIN : 08005989
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024




* Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited
CIN : U40300MH2005PTC150860
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs except earning per share)

Particulars Notes

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (i)

Expenses
Other expenses 9
Total expenses (ii)

Loss before exceptional and extraordinary item and tax (iii = i-ii)
Exceptional items (iv)

Loss before Extraordinary item and tax (v= iii-iv)

Extraordinary Items (vi)

Loss before Tax (vii= v-vi)

Tax Expenses (viii)

Current tax

Deferred tax

Short/(Excess) provision of tax of earlier years

Total tax expenses

Loss for the year (ix= vii-viii)

Earnings per equity share (in INR) [nominal value of INR 10 per share 10
(March 31, 2023 - INR 10 per share)]

Basic

Diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies 3

0.67

1.38

0.67

1.38

(0.67)

(1.38)

(0.67)

(1.38)

(0.67)

(1.38)

(0.67)

(1:38}

(6.66)
(6.66)

(13.75)
(13.75)

As per our report of even date.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 124459W

Rushabh A. Gada
Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited

=5

Sarang Bhand
Director
DIN : 01633419

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

20T

Kirit Sheth
Director
DIN : 08005989

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024




g Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited
CIN : U40300MH2005PTC150860
Statement Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulsis For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (0.67) (1.38)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Sundry balance written back - “
Operating profit before working capital changes (0.67) (1.38)
Movement in working capital :
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other liabilities 0.08 0.29
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (0.59) (1.08)
Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds) - -
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (0.59) (1.08)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments including capital advances - -
Purchase of intangible asset including capital advances - =
Net cash used in investing activities (B) - -
Cash flow from financing activities
Net Proceeds from long-term borrowings 0.46 1.08
Net cash used in financing activities (C) 0.46 1.08
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (0.12) (0.00)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.17 0.17
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 0.04 0.17
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 0.04 0.04
Balances with banks:
- on current accounts = 0.12
Total cash & cash equivalents (Note 8) 0.04 0.17

Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date.

For Gada & Bid
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 124

Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited

J=EA

Sarang Bhand
Director
DIN : 01633419

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

Q.05
Kirit Sheth
Director

DIN : 08005989

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024




Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited
CIN : U40300MH2005PTC150860
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1 Nature of Operation
Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited ("the Company") established with the object of and engaged in the business of providing Infrastructural
Facilities as prescribed in Section 186(11) r.w. Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013 and is an SPV for Construction, Development and
Maintenance of Municipal solid waste-to-energy project at Pune.

2 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP).
The company has prepared these financial statements to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and presentation requirements of Division I of Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those of previous year unless otherwise specified.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle, and other criteria set out in the
schedule III to the companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of product and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of current/non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

Current-Non current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as follows:

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

alt is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

b.It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c.It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d.It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

c. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms ofa
Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle: |
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The company has
taken Operating cycle to be twelve months.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Presentation and disclosure A
The Company has prepared the Financial Statements along with the relevant notes in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Act.

b. Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, estimates and disclosgre
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although, these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty{ about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in the current

and future periods.

¢. Cash and Cash Equivalent . : : i
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original

maturity of three months or less.

d. Cash Flow Statement ) : i,
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of

transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Income taxes

Tax expenses comprise current and deferred tax.Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurusdictions where the company
operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised subject to the consideration of prudence on timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed
depreciation and losses carried forward are recognised only to the extent there is a virtual certainty of its realisation.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized in the financial statements when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The provisions are determined on the basis of a reliable estimate of expected
outflows of economic benefits after considering the risk specific to the liability. No provision is recognised or disclosure for contingent liability is
made when there is a possible obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed
in the financial statements.
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(INR in Lakhs)
4  Share capital Number of Shares Number of Shares As at As at

] March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorized share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) 10,000 10,000 1.00 1.00
Total 1.00 1.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each) 10,000 10,000 1.00 1.00
Total 1.00 1.00
Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Particniars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

e No. of Shares INR in Lakhs No. of Shares INR in Lakhs

At the beginning of the year . 10,000 .00 10,000 1.00
Add: Shares issued during the year = : - : : :
Less: Shares Bought Back during the year = e - - =
Qutstanding at the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled for voting rights in proportion to its actual shareholding in the Company. The Company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by Holding Company

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Number of Shares As at Number of Shares As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Equity Shares held by Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited) 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
harehold: t At

N ol Sarehoider Ne. of shares hicld % of Holding No. of shares held % of Holding
Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited) 10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%

As per the records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial
ownership of shares.

The company has not issued shares pursuant to any contract for consideration other than cash, Bonus shares and shares bought back during 5 preceding years.

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of Promoter as at March 31, 2024 is as follow:

Name of Promoter As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 % change

No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares | % of total shares during the year
Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited) 10,000 100.00%| 10,000 | 100.00%| -
Disclosure of shareholding of Promoter as at March 31, 2023 is as follow:
Neme GEPFOHGHET As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 % change

No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares % of total shares durin

Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited)

100.00% 10,000 100.00%|

Mr. Sarang Suhas Bhand holds 1 (one) equity share as a nominee shareholder of Organic Recycling Systg, ch 1 (one) share beneficial interest created in favour of Organic Recycling Systems Limited. ] .
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(INR in Lakhs)
(INR in Lakhs)
? As at As at
I o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year (235.55) (234.18)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year (0.67) (1.38)
Balance as at the end of the year (236.22) (235.55)
Total reserves and surplus (236.22) (235.55)
(INR in Lakhs)
Short term Long term
Borrowing Asat Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured :

From related parties (Refer Note 13) - - 229.04 228.57
Total - - 229.04 228.57
Unsecured loan taken from related parties :

Short term Long term
Particular As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Holding company* - - 229.04 228.57
Total o - 229.04 228.57
Terms and conditions of unsecured borrowings :
* There is no specific repayment schedule of this long term loan. However as per the agreement executed, this loan will have to repaid on or after March 31, 2028 carries interest @ 0%.
(INR in Lakhs)
Current Long-term
Other Liabilities As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 1.07 1.07 - =
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 4.55 4.43 - -
Payable for Expenses 0.60 0.64 - -
Total 6.22 6.14 - -
(INR in Lakhs)
" As at As at
Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand 0.04 0.04
Bank Balances
- In current accounts o
Total 0.04




Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited
CIN : U40300MH2005PTC150860
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in Lakhs)
9 Other expenses For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rates and taxes 0.07 0.01
Legal and professional charges - 0.77
Payment to auditor (Refer details below) 0.60 0.60
Miscellaneous expenses - -
Total 0.67 1.38
* Payment to Auditors
As Auditors:
Audit Fees 0.60 0.60
Other matters = =
Total 0.60 0.60
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10. Earning Per Share

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted number of shares outslxmdmg for basic and diluted earning per share are as summarlsed below:

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (INR in Lakhs) (A) ) 0.67] (1.38)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS, Nominal value of Shares Rs. 10 each (B) 10,000 _' E 10,000
| Weighted average n number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS, Nominal value of Shares Rs. 10 each (C) 10,000 10,000
Basic Earning per Share (A/B) (6.66) (13.75)
Diluted Earning per Share (A/C) (6.66) (13.75)
11. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments
There is no contingent liability & Commitment as on March 31, 2024
12. Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship
Related parties under AS 18
Sarang S. Bhand (Director) . R A S A el o e v o7
Key Madngement Boronne] Kirit Sheth (Director)
Holding Company Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known as Organic Recycling System Private Limited)
Solapur Bioenergy Systems Private Limited =y R SNl o = e
Organic Waste (India) Private Limited px = e i e ) e
o y . |Meerut Bioenergy Systems Private Limited _
Managem 1 O Sl e e
S:nh?;.s mt‘::'li}llflz;z:y SR Rersatg caseoims | Vivea Holdings and Services Private ] leltecl =) S N N
oy |Bay Capital Advisors Private Limited =~ e R 5 i s 1
Wachstum Trading Private Limited e faee s = LSS Samo— ekl 8 AR
Abonnir Contempo Traders Private Limited
i) Related Party transactions (including provisions and accruals) (INR in Lakhs)
s g . For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Name of Related Party Relationship Nature of Transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known ; Unsecured Loan Received 0.62 1.08
as Organic Recycling System Private Limited) Hokiug Conpaay Unsecured Loan Repaid 0.15 -
ii) Closing Balances of Related Parties (including provisions and accruals) (INR in Lakhs)
; : i As at As at
1
Name of Related Party Relationship Nature of Transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Organic Recycling Systems Limited ("formerly known Holdi e ;
tstand 229, :
5 Organio Bl Sysiser Biivate Linitet) olding Company Unsecured Loan Outstanding 9.04 228.57

13. Qutflow in Foreign Currency
There were no foreign currency expenditure during the period (Previous Year INR Nil)
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14. Inflow in Foreign Currency

There were no foreign currency earnings during the period (Previous Year INR Nil)

15. Going Concern

The financial statement indicates that the company has accumulated losses and its net worth is fully eroded. The Company has incurred net loss and has not generated revenue during the

current financial period. The above factors cast a significant uncertainty on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Pending the resolution of the above uncertainties, the
Company has prepared the aforesaid statement on a going concern basis.

16. Ratio Analysis

Particulars

Basis

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Variance %

Current ratio

Current Assets
Current Liabilites

Debt-Equity Ratio

Total Debt
Shareholder's Equity

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on Equity Ratio

_Iﬁgnté;y ‘turnover ratio

0.01

(0.97)

Earnings available for debt
service*

Debt Service**
Net Profit after Tax - Preference
Dividend

Cost of Goods Sold
Average Inventory

Trade Receivables turnover ratio

Trade payables turnover ratio

Net capital turnover ratio 5 X~y

Net Credit Sales

Net Credit Purchases

| Average Trade Payables
Net Sales

Average Working Capital

_|Average Shareholder's Equity |

_|Average Accounts Receivables

NA

Net profit ratio

Return on Capital employed

Return on investment

_ |Net Sales

|Interest on Investment

Net Profit

Earning Before Inierggt;nd Tax
Capital Employed***

Average Current [nvestments

*Earning for debts Services = Net Profit Before Tax + Non Cash Operating Expenses + Interest + Other adjustment like loss on sale of property, plant and equipment etc.

**Debts Service = Interest + Principal Repayment

0.03

097

NA

-0.59%|

NA|

C-23.01%)|

NA

- -53.16%

*+*Capital Employed = Tangible Net worth + Debts + Deferred Tax Liability

(a) Return on Equity Ratio : The ratio has improved due to decrease in losses in current year.
(b) Return on Capital Employed : The ratio has improved due to decrease in losses before interest and tax in current year.
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17. Segment Reporting

The company is operating in single business segment i.e. construction, develr)pment and maintenance of municipal solid waste-to-energy project. Hence AS-17 - "Segment Repornng“ is not

applicable.

18. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises based on information available with the Company is as under:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid

Interest accrued and due on above and the unpaid interest

Interest paid

|Payment made beyond 1 the appomted day dunng s the year

Interest due and payable for the period of delay

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid _
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years

19. Deferred Tax

According to the Accounting Standard AS-22, deferred tax assets should be recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Since there is no reasonable certainty of sufficient future taxable income, deferred tax assets has not been

recognised.

20. Other Disclosures

No transactions to report against the following disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule I11:

(a) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
(b) Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder
(c) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

(d) Wilful defaulter

(e) Transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

21. Balance under the head 'Other current liabilities' are shown as per books of accounts subject to confirmation by concerned parties and adjustment if any, on reconciliation thereof.
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22, Previous year figure
Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to current year's classification.

As per our report of even date.

For Gada & Bid

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 124459W

Rus . Gada
Partner
Membership No.: 112711

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pune Urban Recyclers Private Limited

(P

3 .NE2

Sarang Bhand Kirit Sheth
Director Director

DIN : 01633419 DIN : 08005989
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
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